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To:  Adam Kaufman, AICP 
  Director of Planning Department 

Town of North Castle, NY 
 
From:  32 Orchard Drive – Preliminary Subdivision 
 
Date:  August 7, 2023 
 
 
We are re-submitting the subdivision plan and request that these plans replace any earlier 
submittals.  The subdivision now includes four (4) new lots for a total of five (5) lots, in 
conformance to the zoning. 
 
It is possible that Lot 3 may require a variance for frontage, however, if that is the case, we have 
also submitted a variation of the Subdivision Plan that takes frontage from the cul-de-sac. 
 
The preliminary computations of Gross Land Coverage and Gross Floor Area are contained on 
the Plans.  The exhibits also provide information on conformance to the required contiguous 
area and steep slopes. 
 
We are also submitting a Preliminary Stormwater Plan that describes the reduction in peak 
flows using a proposed stormwater basin. 
 
The subdivision plans have been designed to minimize disturbance by using existing paths and 
drives, and are based on the private road specifications as outlined in the Town Code. 
 
We would appreciate your including this project for the agenda of the September 11 meeting of 
the Planning Board where we would provide a full description of the project. 
 
 
 
 
Submitted by: 

 
Ralph G. Mastromonaco 
 
Cc: Wael Alesawy 
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Project: 32 Orchard Drive – Residential Subdivision 
 
Scope: Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan (Preliminary) 
 
Date:  July 11, 2023 
 
Introduction: 
 
The 13-acre, partially developed and wooded site at 32 Orchard Drive, is proposed for 

development for four (4) new lots.  The project must follow the stormwater rules requiring 

conformance to the NYS Stormwater Design Manual and NYS General Permit.  In addition, the 

project must conform to the Town’s Stormwater Management Code. 

 

The Design Pont is at Orchard Drive and evaluates the existing flow condition as well as the 

impact of the proposed new houses and new impervious areas in the future.  The site 

discharges to an existing surface roadway and, with proposed stormwater basin, there would be 

no additional flows to the street system. 

 

For each storm studied the proposed stormwater control systems limits the peak flows to the 

current, undeveloped condition. 

 

Methodology: 

 

The overall watershed was determined from site inspections and NYS GIS topographical maps.  

The Runoff Curve Numbers were determined from Soil mapping of the Natural Resources 

Conservation Division in the web soil survey.  The area of interest is principally a ‘B’ hydrologic 

grouping based on the soil mapping through the site. 

 

The Hydrocad computer software is used to compute runoff from the watershed and routings 

through the Stormwater Wetland to the outlet control structure. 

 

The purpose of this analysis is also to ensure that peak flows after development do not exceed 

the peak flows that occur currently for a range of storms.  This report analyzes the; 90% 

occurring storm, 2-yr, 10-yr and 100 year storm frequencies. 
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Figure: Proposed Subdivision 
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Results of the Stormwater Analysis: 

 

Table:  NYS DEC Standards 

Storm 

(as noted) 

Existing Peak Flow 

(cfs) 

Proposed Peak Flow 

(cfs) 

100-yr Extreme Storm 35.08 33.97 

10-yr Overbank Flood 12.52 11.52 

2-yr 4.82 4.40 

90% Storm 0 0 

 
Table:  Water Quality Volume Computation for Lots 1, 3, 4 

 

Item 
Area 

(sq. ft.) 

Imp. Area 

(Sq. ft.) 

Imp. 

% 

Prec. 

In. 

Rv 

 

WQv 

(cu. ft.) 

New Houses 42,907 17,106 40 1.5 .41 2,193 

 

The Stormwater Basin captures the entire WQv as there is no outflow during the 90% storm. 
 
Table:  Water Quality Volume for Lot 5– Rain Garden 
 

Item 
Area 

(Sq. ft.) 

New Imp. 

Area 

(Sq. ft.) 

Imp. 

% 

Prec. 

In. 

Rv 

 

WQv 

(cu. ft.) 

Lot 5 2000 2000 100 1.5 .95 238 

 
The proposed Rain Garden is sized to accommodate the required Water Quality Volume. 
 
Discussion: 
 
For each of the watersheds draining to the east (Nos. 2, 3, 4, 5, 7, 8), the proposed realignment 
of the road reduces the area of each watershed such that there is a reduction in peak flow and 
runoff volume in those directions.  Accordingly the proposed development would not impact the 
properties downhill. 
 
For the design point at the base of the driveways, the total flow would be reduced for all storms 
up to the 100 year frequency.  This is due to the large stormwater basin to be constructed on 
the site.  Accordingly, there would be no impact due to the proposed development. 
 
The Stormwater Basin is designed as a common system, thereby eliminating the need to 
provide stormwater treatment for each house.  The stormwater basin would be maintained in a 
common maintenance easement to be filed in Land Records and would encumber each lot 
tributary to it. 
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Maintenance: 

 

The stormwater basin can be cleaned manually after annual inspection of silt levels. 

 

Regulatory Notes: 

 

The project requires that a Notice of Intent be filed with NYS DEC.  Upon completion of the 

work, a Notice of Completion will be filed. 

 

Conclusion: 

 

The stormwater basin will treat the runoff of the Water Quality Volume (WQv) and will conform 

to the NYSDEC requirements of Extreme Storm and Overbank Flood. 

 

A separate Rain Garden would be used to treat runoff from the proposed house on Lot 5, its 

sizing would be complete when the actual house is proposed for a building permit. 

 

The stormwater system will also maintain peak flows to the same level or lower than existing 

conditions.  Further, the stormwater treatment systems are in accordance with NYS DEC and 

Town rules, accordingly, no stormwater impacts are anticipated from this proposed 

development. 

 

 

Submitted by: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Ralph G. Mastromonaco 
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Tables:  Existing and Proposed Flows 
 

 
 

 
  

EX PR Final Change

4.82 4.4 (0.09)

12.52 11.52 (0.08)

35.08 33.97 (0.03)

Name Ex.  Flow Name Pr. Flow Change

2EX 1.52 2P 1.09 (0.28)

2EX 4.19 2P 2.99 (0.29)

2EX 12.11 2P 8.63 (0.29)

3EX 1.1 3P 0.85 (0.23)

3EX 2.96 3P 2.37 (0.20)

3EX 8.42 3P 6.9 (0.18)

4EX 0.59 4P 0.46 (0.22)

4EX 1.6 4P 1.3 (0.19)

4EX 4.56 4P 3.8 (0.17)

5EX 0.68 5P 0.058 (0.91)

5EX 1.84 5P 1.64 (0.11)

5EX 5.23 5P 4.77 (0.09)

6EX 1.14 6P 0.77 (0.32)

6EX 2.83 6P 1.8 (0.36)

6EX 7.65 6P 4.66 (0.39)

7EX 0.45 7P 0.42 (0.07)

7EX 1.13 7P 0.95 (0.16)

7EX 3.04 7P 2.39 (0.21)

8EX 0.32 8P 0.26 (0.19)

8EX 0.87 8P 0.72 (0.17)

8EX 2.51 8P 2.09 (0.17)

9EX 0.21 9P 0.21 0.00

9EX 0.55 9P 0.55 0.00

9EX 1.57 9P 1.57 0.00
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Figure:  Existing Watersheds 
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Figure:  Proposed Watersheds 
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Figure: Soil Hydrologic Groups and Soil Types 
 

 


































